

September - October 2014

INTERNATIONAL REGULATORY DEVELOPMENTS

Table of Contents

EUROPE	2
Euro 6 starts for New Homologations	
European Commission proposes Stage V Standard for Non-Road Mobile Machinery	2
New European Commission	
CARS 2020 Final Report	4
New Directive on Alternative Fuels Infrastructure	. 4
European Parliament Study on EU Air Quality Policy and WHO Guidelines	
Commission Study on Possible National Emission Ceilings Directive Flexibilities	
Report on Synergies between EU Air Quality, Climate and Energy Policies	
CO ₂ Emissions from Passenger Cars and Vans in 2013	0
EEA Report on EU Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Energy Trends	0
EU Climate and Energy Saving Targets	
Statistical Pocketbook on Transport	
2015 Standardisation Work Programme	0
Best Available Techniques Reference for Non-Ferrous Metals Industries.	0
Machine and Vehicles Emissions Standards on German Construction Sites	
Investigations on DPF Tampering on German Taxis	7
DUH wins Legal Dispute on Clean Air in Reutlingen, Germany	7
Air Quality in Ireland in 2013	7
2013 UK Air Pollution Report	
London Mayor supports UK Diesel Scrappage Scheme	
Public Consultation on London's Ultra Low Emission Zone	
UK Air Quality – NOx Mitigation Competition.	
Scottish Government to consider Low Emissions Strategy	0 9
Madrid implements Traffic Restrictions to mitigate Air Pollution	0
French Order on Retrofits amended	
Environmental Public Perception in Paris	
Low Emission Zone in Prague in 2016	0
Italy requires Minimum Blend of Second Generation Biofuels	
Italian Consumer Organisation sues OEMs over Misleading Fuel Economy	
NORTH AMERICA	. 10
2013 Fuel Economy of Light-Duty Vehicles in the US	
US EPA Grants for Clean Diesel Projects in Polluted Ports	
New Light-duty Vehicles' Emissions Requirements in Canada	. 10
Environmental Comparison of Diesel vs. Natural Gas for Shipping	. 11
CENTRAL & SOUTH AMERICA	
B7 Mandate takes Effect in Brazil	
EURASIA	. 11
Guidelines for Air Quality Governance in ENPI East Countries	. 11
Kazakhstan to produce Euro 5 Gasoline	. 11
ASIA PACIFIC	
Lower Sulfur Fuels available in Hangzhou, China	. 12
Natural Gas Hybrid Buses Deployment Plans in Seoul	. 12
Early Euro 4 Standard in the Philippines	. 12
UNITED NATIONS	. 12
Record Global Greenhouse Gas Levels	. 12
UNECE Environmental Impact Assessment Convention	. 13
GENERAL	. 13
World Medical Assembly recommends PN Standards for all New Diesels	. 13
ICCT Report on Real-World Emissions of Modern Diesel Cars	. 13
ICCT Report on Increasing Real-world Fuel Economy Gap	. 13
ICCT Paper on WLTP and Fuel Consumption	. 14
Report on Urban Transport Modal Shift	. 14
New ISO Standard on Marine Urea Quality	. 14
RESEARCH SUMMARY	
FORTHCOMING CONFERENCES	

Association for Emissions Control by Catalyst AISBL



EUROPE

Euro 6 starts for New Homologations

On 1 September 2014 the Euro 6 standard entered force for new Type-Approvals of M1, M2, and N1 Class I vehicles. The Euro 6 requirements for N1 Class II and III and N2 vehicles will follow in one year.

The new "Euro 6b" standard includes Euro 6 emission limits and flex-fuel vehicle low temperature emission testing with biofuel. Key changes include further reduction in the NOx standard for Diesel cars, lowered from the Euro 5 limit of 180 mg/km to 80 mg/km, and the introduction of a particle number standard for gasoline direct injection vehicles.

Euro 6 Emission Limits																
			Limit values													
		Reference mass (RM) (kg)	Mass of carbon monoxide (CO) L ₁ (mg/km)		Mass of total hydrocarbons (THC) L ₂ (mg/km)		Mass of non-methane hydrocarbons (NMHC) L ₃ (mg/km)		Mass of oxides of nitrogen (NO _x) L ₄ (mg/km)		Combined mass of hydrocarbons and oxides of nitrogen (THC + NO ₃) L ₂ + L ₄ (mg/km)		Mass of particulate matter (PM) (¹) L ₅ (mg/km)		Number of particles (PN) Ls (#/km)	
М	_	All	1 000	500	100	_	68	_	60	80	-	170	4,5	4,5	6,0 × 10 ¹¹	6,0 × 10 ¹¹
N ₁	Ι	RM ≤ 1 305	1 000	500	100	_	68	_	60	80	_	170	4,5	4,5	6,0 × 10 ¹¹	6,0 × 10 ¹¹
	П	1 305 < RM ≤ 1 760	1 810	630	130	_	90	_	75	105	_	195	4,5	4,5	6,0 × 10 ¹¹	6,0 × 10 ¹¹
	Ш	1 760 < RM	2 270	740	160	_	108	_	82	125	_	215	4,5	4,5	6,0 × 10 ¹¹	6,0 × 10 ¹¹
N ₂	_	All	2 270	740	160	_	108	_	82	125	_	215	4,5	4,5	6,0 × 10 ¹¹	6,0 × 10 ¹¹

App: n = rotaine gammersion gammersion regiment
 A limit of 5.0 mg/km for the mass of particulate emissions applies to vehicles type approved to the emission limits of this table with the previous particulate mass measurement protocol, before 1.9.2011.
 Positive ignition particulate mass and number limits shall apply only to vehicles with direct injection engines.
 Until three years after the dates specified in Article 10(4) and (5) for new type approval and new vehicles respectively, a particle number emission limit of 6.0 × 10¹² #/km shall apply to Euro 6 PI direct injection vehicles upon the choice of the manufacturer. Until those dates at the latest a type approval test method ensuring the effective limitation of the number of particles emisted by vehicles under real driving conditions shall be implemented.

The Euro 6b standard does not include Real-Driving Emissions requirements which are expected to come into force on 1 September 2017. At that date, the particle number standard for gasoline direct injection vehicles will also be tightened to the same level as that for Diesel cars.

Tightened OBD requirements are also introduced in two stages, from the same dates.

European Commission proposes Stage V Standard for Non-Road Mobile Machinery

On 25 September 2014 the European Commission adopted a proposal to further tighten exhaust emissions requirements from Non-Road Mobile Machinery (NRMM).

NRMM covers a very wide variety of machinery typically used off the road in many diverse applications. It comprises, for example, small gardening and handheld equipment (lawn mowers, chain saws), construction machinerv (excavators, loaders. bulldozers) and agricultural and farming machinery (harvesters, cultivators); even railcars, locomotives and inland waterway vessels fall under the scope of NRMM.

Engines covered by this Regulation are split into various categories. 'NRE' is the main land-based category; 'NRG' are genset engines >560 kW; 'IWP' and 'IWA' are Inland Waterway engines for propulsion and auxiliary applications respectively; 'RLL' and 'RLR' are rail engines for locomotives and railcars respectively; 'SMB' are snowmobile engines; 'ATS' comprise engines for All-Terrain and Side-by-Side Vehicles: 'NRSh' are spark ignition engines <19 kW for hand-held equipment while 'NRS' are other SI engines

up to 56 kW. Constant speed engines are not differentiated from variable speed engines anymore.

The proposed Stage V Regulation introduces a limit on the number of particles (PN) of 1x10¹²/kWh complementing a particulate mass limit of 15 mg/kWh for land-based engines between 19 and 560 kW. This aligns with the Swiss standard which was the first one ever to introduce a PN limit in the NRMM sector. There is however no PN limit for engines >560 kW in the main category but a PN standard applies to all Inland Waterway engines above 300 kW.

The NOx limit for the main engine category remains unchanged compared with Stage IV at 400 mg/kWh but engines >560 kW have now to meet 3.5 g/kWh.

Gas-fuelled engines benefit from a relaxed HC limit to accommodate methane emissions, with a high methane allowance for engines >560 kW in the main category and for all inland waterway engines.

Emissions durability periods vary by engine category. In the land-based engine category, the durability requirement is 8000 hours for engines >37 kW.

CO₂ emissions measured during the engine typeapproval test will have to be reported to the end-user of the machinery but there is no CO₂ cap proposed.



In the main category, Stage V requirements will enter force on 1 January 2018 for Type-Approval (TA) of engines (1 January 2019 for placing on the market of engines) for all engines except those in the power band 56-130 kW which benefit from a 1-year delay. Stage V for genset, inland waterway <300 kW, snowmobiles, all-terrain vehicles and small SI engines also enters force on 1/1/2018 (TA of engines) – 1/1/19 (placing on the market of engines). Inland waterway engines between 300 and 1000 kW benefit from a one-year delay while those >1000 kW and railway engines have a 2-year delay (i.e. 1/1/2020 for TA of engines – 1/1/2021 for placing on the market of engines).

Transitional provisions are included in the Regulation, allowing engines of a previous emissions stage to be placed on the market during 18 months after Stage V entered force if the machine was produced during the first year when Stage V entered force.

Armed forces machinery, field testing of prototypes, and machinery used in explosive atmospheres are exempt from the proposed Stage V standards.

The Commission will have to report by the end of 2020 on the assessment of further pollutant emissions reduction potential, on the basis of available technologies and cost/benefit analysis, and on the identification of potentially relevant pollutant types, currently unregulated. It will also have to report by the end of 2025 on the monitoring of in-service conformity testing results, and on the use of exemption clauses.

Delegated acts will be adopted by end 2016 to further define engine families, anti-tampering provisions, monitoring of in-service emission performance, technical tests and measurement procedures, conformity of production, separate delivery of an engine's exhaust aftertreatment system, engines for field-testing, engines for use in hazardous atmospheres, equivalence of engine type-approvals, a Union central administrative platform and database, self-testing, standards and assessment of technical services, fully and partially gaseous fuelled engines, measurement of PN and test cycles. Implementing acts will also be adopted by the end of 2016 to establish TA administrative requirements.

Once adopted, the new Regulation will replace 28 national laws that transposed Directive 97/68/EC, a complex legislation comprising 15 Annexes and amended 8 times since it was published in 1997. The Commission is proposing a Regulation that will not require transposition into national legislations like a Directive does; it will be directly applicable in all EU Member States.

The proposal will now be discussed in the European Parliament and the Council, following the co-decision legislative process.

Commission proposal COM(2014) 581 final and the related impact assessment are available from http://ec.europa.eu/enterprise/sectors/automotive/environme

nt/non-road-mobile-machinery/index_en.htm.

New European Commission

The new European Commission's President Jean-Claude Juncker announced on 10 September 2014 the allocation of responsibilities in his team once it takes office on 1 November 2014.

The final list of Commissioners was adopted in agreement with the Council and the European Parliament gave its consent on 22 October 2014, with two changes following hearings of the Commissioners-designate in parliamentary committees held between 29 September and 3 October 2014. The decision passed in the Parliament by 423 votes in favour, 209 against and 67 abstentions. The majority was composed of the EPP, S&D (with the Spanish delegation abstaining) and ALDE groups. GUE/NGL, Greens/EFA and EFDD groups voted against, while the ECR group was split.

In the Juncker Commission, there are six Vice-Presidents in addition to the High Representative of the Union for Foreign Affairs and Security Policy who is at the same time a Vice-President of the Commission. There is a First Vice-President, Dutch Frans Timmermans, who will be in charge of Better Regulation, Inter-Institutional Relations, the Rule of Law and the Charter of Fundamental Rights.

The new Internal Market, Industry, Entrepreneurship and SME portfolio is attributed to Polish Elžbieta Bieńkowska.

The Environment and Maritime Affairs and Fisheries portfolios have been combined and attributed to Maltese Karmenu Vella. The Commission indicated that it "will reflect the twin logic of 'blue' and 'green' growth – environment and maritime conservation policies can and should play a key role in creating jobs, preserving resources, stimulating growth and encouraging investment." In his 'mission letters' to the new Commissioners, Mr Juncker asked Mr Vella in particular to assess whether the Commission's air quality strategy "addresses the right sources of air pollution with the right instruments".

Also a single Commissioner will be in charge of both Climate Action and Energy policy, Spanish Miguel Arias Cañete.

The new Commission includes four former Prime Ministers, seven returning Commissioners and five MEPs elected in May 2014.

The new Commission is at <u>http://ec.europa.eu/commission/2014-2019_en</u>.



CARS 2020 Final Report

On 8 October 2014 the European Commission released the final CARS 2020 report.

The report has been built upon the outcomes of the work of the CARS 2020 High Level Group and outlines not only the achievements but also indicates the direction for future short- and medium-term actions, which need to be taken in order to maintain and further strengthen the competitiveness of the European automotive sector.

Regarding CO₂ and pollutant emissions from cars and vans, the CARS 2020 report states that the new test cycle and procedure that are more representative for real life driving (WLTP) are proposed by the Commission to be applicable in Europe as from 2017. It also states that the Commission is concluding the development of a complementary testing procedure based on the use of Portable Emissions Measurement Systems (PEMS) which will assess more accurately the emissions of selected regulated pollutants in real life driving conditions. As indicated in the CARS 2020 Action plan, the Real-Driving Emissions (RDE) procedure is planned to be implemented in the EU type-approval framework as from 2014, starting with a monitoring phase and the application of not-to-exceed emissions limits as from 2017.

The Commission is also considering re-launching the CARS 2020 process. Main topics, in addition to the ones already discussed by the working groups, are the implementation and promotion of intelligent transport systems (ITS) comprising, among others, autonomous vehicles, vehicle-to-x communication, as well as smart mobility.

The CARS 2020 report is at <u>http://ec.europa.eu/enterprise/sectors/automotive/cars-</u>2020/index_en.htm#h2-1.

New Directive on Alternative Fuels Infrastructure

A new Directive promoting the development of infrastructures for alternative fuels was published in the Official Journal of the EU on 28 October 2014 as Directive 2014/94/EU.

The Directive requires Member States to set 2020 targets for electric vehicles recharging points accessible to the public. It also mandates a common plug all across the EU. For the development of Liquefied Natural Gas (LNG) for road transport, Member States have to ensure a sufficient number of publicly accessible refuelling points, with common standards, ideally every 400 km, to be built by the end of 2025. The Directive also requires a minimum coverage to ensure accessibility of LNG in main maritime and inland ports. It requires Member States to

ensure a sufficient number of publicly accessible Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) refuelling points both in urban and sub-urban areas, ideally every 150 km, to be built by the end of 2025. It also aims at ensuring a sufficient number of publicly accessible hydrogen refuelling points in the Member States who opt for hydrogen infrastructure, to be built by the end of 2025.

In addition, the Directive requires that clear information is given to consumers about the fuels that can be used by a vehicle, using standardised labelling in vehicle manuals, at dealerships and on the recharging and refuelling points. It also aims at providing clear information to users to compare prices of alternative fuels with those of conventional fuels.

Directive 2014/94/EU is at <u>http://eur-lex.europa.eu/legal-</u> content/EN/TXT/PDF/?uri=OJ:JOL 2014 307 R 0001&from=EN.

European Parliament Study on EU Air Quality Policy and WHO Guidelines

On 9 October 2014 the European Parliament's Environment Committee (ENVI) published a study prepared by its Policy Department that analyses the various emissions reduction scenarios considered by the European Commission for the revision of the National Emission Ceilings (NEC) Directive.

The objective of the NEC Directive revision proposal, currently being discussed in Parliament and Council under the co-decision procedure, came as part of the "Clean Air Programme for Europe" package. It aims at further reducing the health impact of air pollution, taking into account the latest advice from the World Health Organization (WHO). Since even full compliance with the existing NEC Directive would not lead to compliance with existing air quality limit and target values, let alone the more stringent WHO guidelines, one of the main objectives of the Commission's proposal is to narrow the gap between current air pollution and WHO guideline levels by reducing PM_{2.5} and its precursors (NH₃, NOx, SO₂) as well as precursors of ozone (NMVOC, NOx, CH₄) and NO₂.

The report notes that amongst EU Member States, the largest absolute discrepancy between the national NOx ceilings and actual emissions has been found in Germany. The main reasons are said to be the differences between Type-Approval and real-world NOx emissions from diesel vehicles, the fuel consumption by heavy-duty vehicles which has been higher than projected, the inclusion of previously not estimated emissions in agriculture, and an increase in the use of biomass combustion.

The report concludes that the Maximum Technically Feasible Reduction scenario's pollution control costs of \in 3.3 billion per year in 2030 are over-compensated by the health benefits, which are estimated at \in 40 billion per year and provide a strong argument for the



proposed additional efforts to reduce air pollution. However, it also notes that full implementation of the new NEC Directive proposal in 2030 would still leave significant parts of Europe in non-compliance with WHO guideline values.

The study is at

www.europarl.europa.eu/RegData/etudes/STUD/2014/5362 85/IPOL_STU(2014)536285_EN.pdf

Commission Study on Possible National Emission Ceilings Directive Flexibilities

The European Commission released on 1 October 2014 a study prepared by the International Institute for Applied Systems Analysis (IIASA) on "a flexibility mechanism for complying with National Emission Ceilings (NEC) for air pollutants".

In the context of co-decision negotiations on the revision of the NEC Directive, IIASA developed a "pragmatic pollution compensation scheme" that would allow Member States to exceed the proposed emissions limit for one pollutant, by offsetting this against reduced emissions of another pollutant. This would be done based on a system of weightings of PM, NOx, SO₂, ammonia and volatile organic compounds (VOC). For instance, excess of the emission ceiling of primary PM_{2.5} by one ton could be compensated by additional emissions reductions of SO₂ by 3.36 tons, or of NOx by 14.9 tons, or of NH₃ by 5.15 tons, or of VOC by 111 tons.

The study is a "purely technical examination of how an additional flexibility mechanism might operate in practice", the Commission's DG Environment said. "A number of further issues would need to be addressed if the idea were taken beyond the technical level, including the relation with the three existing flexibility mechanisms in the NEC Directive," it added. The Commission has actually proposed allowing Member States to offset PM_{2.5}, SO₂ and NOx emissions reductions in the shipping sector against emissions from other sources in the same year. Member States will also be allowed to jointly meet their methane reduction targets and to adjust their national emission inventories to improve accuracy.

The IIASA study is available at

www.iiasa.ac.at/web/home/research/researchPrograms/MitigationofAirPollutionandGreenhousegases/TSAP_15-v1.pdf

Report on Synergies between EU Air Quality, Climate and Energy Policies

On 30 October 2014 a study prepared by the International Institute for Applied Systems Analysis (IIASA) for the European Parliament's Committee on Environment was released in the context of a revision of the National Emission Ceilings (NEC) Directive. This report provides a complementary impact assessment, exploring the interactions between the European Union's air quality policy and the proposed EU climate and energy policy. It shows that reduced consumption of polluting fuels resulting from the climate and energy targets that have been put forward by the European Commission in early 2014 (i.e., a 40% reduction in GHGs, a share of 27% renewables, and a 30% improvement of energy efficiency in 2030 compared to the 2007 baseline), would reduce premature mortality from fine particulates in the EU and make further air quality improvements less costly.

IIASA says that new air pollution limits for 2030 tabled by the Commission in the new NEC Directive proposal are likely to be achieved at a cost \in 5.5 billion cheaper per year than the Commission has predicted when the climate and energy package for 2030 is factored in. In fact, the climate and energy package means meeting the air pollution targets will be \in 2.2 billion cheaper than business as usual, whereas the Commission predicted it would be \in 3.3 billion more expensive, IIASA concludes.

The Environment Committee will consider the study at their meeting on 6 November 2014.

The study is at

www.europarl.europa.eu/meetdocs/2014_2019/documents/ envi/dv/ia-air_quality_/ia-air_quality_en.pdf.

CO₂ Emissions from Passenger Cars and Vans in 2013

On 30 October 2014 the European Environment Agency (EEA) published the final report on CO_2 emissions from new passenger cars and vans registered in the EU in 2013. It updates and confirms preliminary data published in April 2014.

The average passenger car sold in 2013 emitted 126.7 grams of carbon dioxide per kilometre (g CO₂/km), already below the legal threshold of 130 g CO₂/km to be fully reached by 2015. Similarly, the average van sold must have emissions below 175 g CO₂/km by 2017, but levels were already at 173.3 g CO₂/km last year.

Each manufacturer has an individual emissions target, based on the average mass of the vehicles they sell. There were 11.8 million new cars and 1.2 million new vans registered in the EU in 2013. While both fleets overall are making progress in reducing emissions levels, the picture is more mixed when manufacturers are considered individually, EEA said.

The EEA report includes a comparison of the reported test cycle CO_2 emissions with estimated real-world emissions. The assessment shows that modelled real-world CO_2 emissions are around 20% higher on average than the reported ones. The difference may be



up to a third higher for larger cars, the report shows. The new Worldwide harmonized Light vehicles Test Procedure (WLTP) is expected to be introduced in the future so that laboratory results will better represent actual vehicle performance on the road.

EEA Technical Report No 19/2014 is at www.eea.europa.eu/publications/monitoring-co2-emissions-from-passenger.

EEA Report on EU Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Energy Trends

On 28 October 2014 the European Environment Agency (EEA) released the 2014 report on trends and projections in Europe, tracking progress towards Europe's climate and energy targets for 2020.

According to EEA, the EU is likely to cut Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions by at least 21% of 1990 levels by 2020, surpassing its 20 % target. With 14 % of final energy consumption generated by renewable sources in 2012, the EU is also ahead of the planned trajectory to hit 20 % renewable energy by 2020. Likewise, the EU's energy consumption is also falling faster than necessary to meet the 2020 energy efficiency target.

Nevertheless the picture at Member State level is more mixed than at EU level, EEA said. Nine countries were making good progress in pursuing the three linked policy objectives – GHG emissions reduction, renewable energy and energy efficiency – while no Member State was underperforming in all areas.

EEA report No 6/2014 is at

www.eea.europa.eu/publications/trends-and-projections-ineurope-2014

EU Climate and Energy Saving Targets

On 23 October 2014 EU Heads of State and Government agreed on an EU-level binding renewable energy target and an indicative EU energy saving target for 2030, each of 27%.

The energy saving goal, which is weaker than the European Commission's 30% proposal, will be reviewed by 2020 "having in mind an EU level of 30%".

EU leaders also agreed to review the 40% Greenhouse Gas (GHG) reduction target for 2030 after the Paris climate summit in 2015. The EU's existing 20% CO₂ reduction goal for 2020 would move to 30% if a global climate deal were agreed.

Statistical Pocketbook on Transport

The European Commission's Directorate-General for Mobility and Transport (DG-MOVE) has published the 2014 edition of their Statistical Pocketbook on Transport – "EU Transport in Figures".

The publication consists of three parts: a general part with general economic and other relevant data, a transport part covering both passenger and freight transport as well as other transport-related data, and, finally, an energy and environmental part with data on the impact which the transport sector has on the environment (covering CO_2 and GHG emissions rather than pollutants).

Most of the tables have data up to 2012; where available, more recent data have been provided.

The pocketbook and tables in Excel[®] format can be downloaded from <u>http://ec.europa.eu/transport/facts-fundings/statistics/pocketbook-2014_en.htm</u>.

2015 Standardisation Work Programme

The European Commission's work programme on priorities for standardisation for 2015 (COM (2014) 500 final) identifies bio-based products including biofuels as a key issue.

In addition, as a result of the recent revision of the Recreational Craft Directive, there may be specific standardisation requests or new mandates concerning test bed measurement of gaseous and particulate emissions from relevant internal combustion engines. The Commission also expects to issue mandates to standardisation organisations on measurement methods for industrial emissions of cadmium, nickel, mercury, PAHs, PCDD and PCDF as well as standards related to ecodesign criteria for space- and waterheaters. Finally, the European Innovation Partnership on raw materials will work on common standards for waste recycling and for data reporting on exploration, mineral production, trade, reserves and resources. The implementation of points under the Commission's 2014 work programme on clean vehicles and vessels may also be considered.

 The
 Communication
 is
 at
 <u>http://eur-lex.europa.eu/LexUriServ.do?uri=COM:2014:05</u>

 00:FIN:EN:PDF.

Best Available Techniques Reference for Non-Ferrous Metals Industries

The Joint Research Centre (JRC) of the European Commission has published a Best Available Techniques (BAT) Reference Document, under the Industrial Emissions Directive, for the Non-Ferrous Metals Industries.

The original BAT Reference (BREF) document on Nonferrous metals was adopted by the European Commission in 2001. The new document is the result of a review of that BREF which started in 2007.

Chapter 1 provides general information on the nonferrous metals industries concerned. Chapter 2 provides information on the common industrial processes, abatement systems and general techniques that are used across the sector. Chapters 3 to 10 describe the applied processes, provide information on current emissions and consumption



levels, and describe techniques to consider in the determination of BAT and emerging techniques for the various metal groups. Amongst those, chapter 7 addresses Precious Metals, including Platinum Group Metals (PGM).

The BREF document is at

http://eippcb.jrc.ec.europa.eu/reference/BREF/NFM Final Draft 10 2014.pdf.

Machine and Vehicles Emissions Standards on German Construction Sites

On 12 September 2014 the German Ministry for Economic Affairs and Energy notified the European Commission of its intention to add environmental protection requirements to the existing Tendering and Environment Administrative Regulation (VwVBU) that has been in place since 1 January 2013 and ensures environmentally friendly procurement with appropriate environmental criteria for products and services.

For construction works, it is envisaged to ban the use of diesel-powered equipment with an engine between 37 and 560 kW that meet emissions requirements below Stage IIIB. Equipment using a diesel engine between 19 and 37 kW will have to be certified at least to Stage IIIA. And on-road construction equipment will have to meet the Euro IV standard or higher. Any equipment or vehicles that are older will have to be retrofitted with a particle reduction system, as will construction equipment fitted with a constant speed engine of more than 18 kW.

Retrofit Diesel Particulate Filters (DPF) must be approved according to one of the following existing standards: Class PMK 2 or higher as defined in Annex XXVII to the Traffic Approval Regulation (StVZO), UN REC Directive Class 1 or 2, reduction class 01, quality mark of the FAD, quality seal of the VERT Association, or conformance to the Swiss regulation.

Investigations on DPF Tampering on German Taxis

On 28 August 2014 the German Non-Governmental Organization Deutsche Umwelthilfe (DUH) released the initial outcome of their investigations on particle emissions from diesel taxis in operation.

After anonymous reports from the taxi industry over DPF-equipped vehicles being tampered, DUH investigated 728 diesel taxis in five German cities (Berlin, Hamburg, Cologne, Frankfurt and Munich) to check whether they were fitted with a DPF to control particulate emissions. DUH said 31 of them (almost 9%) of Euro 5 diesel taxis had high emissions.

DUH announced they will further investigate the issue in other cities with portable emissions measuring instruments.

DUH wins Legal Dispute on Clean Air in Reutlingen, Germany

As a consequence of a legal action launched by the environmental and consumer protection association Deutsche Umwelthilfe (DUH) in January 2012, the Administrative Court of Sigmaringen, Germany decided on 24 October 2014 that the air quality plan for the city of Reutlingen has to be updated with measures to meet the NO₂ and PM₁₀ limit values as soon as possible.

In 2013 the annual mean for NO₂ measured at the monitoring station Lederstraße Ost was 72 μ g/m³, clearly exceeding the limit value of 40 μ g/m³. The daily limit value for PM₁₀ of 50 μ g/m³ was exceeded at this station on 79 days in 2013. That is more than a double of the allowed number of exceedance days.

The current third update of the air quality plan in Reutlingen comprises an expansion of the Low Emission Zone (LEZ) over the whole city including federal roads starting from 1 January 2015. However the prediction of the Regional Council shows, that compliance with limits for NO_2 and PM_{10} will not be achieved, despite the enlarged LEZ.

DUH suggested the implementation of further measures such as the retrofitting of buses with NO₂-reduction systems and particle filters, the obligatory use of construction machines and equipment with particle filters, the replacement of the taxi fleet with vehicles that correspond with the requirements of the ADAC Eco Label, the promotion of public transport and cycling and an effective transport management.

Air Quality in Ireland in 2013

The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) of Ireland has published a report on air quality in Ireland.

This report provides an overview of air quality in Ireland for 2013, based on data obtained from the 29 monitoring stations that form the National Ambient Air Quality Network, including data from a number of mobile air quality monitoring units. Overall, air quality in Ireland compares favourably with other EU Member States. Measured values of sulfur dioxide (SO₂), nitrogen dioxide (NO₂), carbon monoxide (CO), Ozone (O₃), particulate matter (PM₁₀ and PM_{2.5}), heavy metals, benzene and polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs) were all below limit values.

However, when some of these parameters are compared to the tighter WHO air quality guideline values, it highlights some potential issues. Ireland is above these guideline values with respect to PM_{10} , $PM_{2.5}$, ozone and PAHs.

The Irish EPA report is at

www.epa.ie/pubs/reports/air/quality/Air%20Quality%20Report%202013.pdf



2013 UK Air Pollution Report

On 26 September 2014 the UK Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs (DEFRA) released the UK's air quality compliance report for 2013.

This report summarises the UK's 2013 submission on air quality to the EU Commission, presenting air quality modelling data and measurements from national air pollution monitoring networks.

In 2013, the UK met the limit value for hourly mean nitrogen dioxide (NO₂) in 42 zones out of 43. 12 zones were compliant with the limit value for annual mean NO₂. Of these 12 compliant zones, five were within the limit value, and a further seven were covered by a time extension and were within the limit value plus the applicable margin of tolerance. The remaining 31 zones exceeded the annual mean NO₂ limit value.

In the UK in 2013 all zones met the limit value for daily mean concentration of PM_{10} after subtraction of the contribution from natural sources and all zones met the limit value for annual mean concentration of PM_{10} .

Also all zones met the target value for annual mean concentration of $PM_{2.5}$ (Stage 1 limit which comes into force in 2015). After subtraction of the natural contribution, one zone did not meet the Stage 2 limit value which must be met by 2020.

In addition, 33 zones exceeded the ozone long-term objective set for protecting human health and 8 zones exceeded the ozone long-term objective set for the protection of vegetation.

Finally, in 2013, the UK met the EU limit values for sulfur dioxide.

The report "Air Pollution in the UK 2013" is at <u>http://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/library/annualreport/index</u>.

London Mayor supports UK Diesel Scrappage Scheme

On 10 September 2014 the Mayor of London, Boris Johnson, renewed calls for a UK national diesel car scrappage scheme.

Talking to the Environmental Audit Committee, Mr Johnson supported proposals for the Government to help motorists by offering a grant of £1000 - 2000 (€1250 - 2500) per vehicle for diesel vehicles which are more than 12 months old. He called this "a brilliant opportunity to support the British car industry and promote the early uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles." Mr Johnson said the scheme would cost around £300 million (€375 million) in total implying that he plans to take between 150 000 and 300 000 cars off the road.

Charging diesel cars more is a key part of the Mayor's proposals for an Ultra Low Emission Zone, which will be introduced in central London from 2020 (subject to

consultation, see next story). Mr Johnson also welcomed a new study comparing air quality in 36 world and European cities based on pollutants like particulate matter (PM_{10} and $PM_{2.5}$), sulfur dioxide (SO_2) and nitrogen dioxide (NO_2). The study undertaken by AMEC consultants for the Mayor, developed three indices which ranked cities based on citywide emissions, transport-focused emissions and using a special health-weighted index. London ranked 9th on the health impacts index, 15th on the citywide index and 17th on the traffic-focused index.

The AMEC study is at

www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/Comparison%20of%20Air%20 Quality%20in%20World%20Cities%20Study%20FINAL.pdf

Public Consultation on London's Ultra Low Emission Zone

Transport for London (TfL) launched on 27 October 2014 a public consultation on a proposal to develop the world's first 'Ultra Low Emission Zone' (ULEZ).

The idea was put forward by the city's Mayor to reduce air pollutants and CO_2 emissions in central London. The zone is planned to coincide with the existing congestion charge zone and would enter into effect from September 2020. The ULEZ aims to at least halve emissions of nitrogen oxides (NOx) and particulate matter (PM₁₀) from vehicle exhausts, according to the proposal. This means more than 80% of central London would meet the NO₂ legal limits in 2020.

All vehicles will be required to meet new exhaust emissions standards when entering the zone or pay a daily charge. The new standards will depend on the size of the vehicle and fuel used. Diesel cars and small vans, for example, will need to comply with Euro 6 standards. Therefore, four-year old (and older) Diesel cars and light-duty vans would only be able to enter the zone after paying a daily charge of £12.50 (€16).

Additional requirements are proposed for taxis and new private hire vehicles, which would need to be zero emission capable to obtain a licence from 2018. All double-decker buses operating in central London will need to be hybrid and single-decker buses zero emission by 2020.

The consultation is open until 9 January 2015 at https://consultations.tfl.gov.uk/environment/ultra-low-emission-zone and supplementary information is available at https://consultations.tfl.gov.uk/environment/ultra-low-emission-zone and supplementary information is available at https://consultations.tfl.gov.uk/environment/ultra-low-emission-zone 261014.pdf.

UK Air Quality – NOx Mitigation Competition

On 22 October 2014 the UK Department for Transport (DfT) launched a competition seeking concepts to help mitigate NOx emissions from road traffic.



DfT is offering a total of about £300 000 (€380 000) to fully-fund projects designed to address air quality on the strategic road network.

The Air Quality – NOx mitigation competition focusses on improving air quality in localised areas, seeking solutions to mitigate NOx 'post tailpipe' in particular.

The competition is designed to provide 'proof of concept' for effectively mitigating NOx. DfT will fund four to six projects, budgeted at £25 000 - 50 000 each.

Projects should start by December 2014 and a final report is required to be delivered by May 2015. The deadline for application is 20 November 2014.

More details are available at

https://connect.innovateuk.org/web/transportktn/article-view/-/blogs/department-for-transport-launches-300-000-air-quality-competition-seeking-new-concepts-to-mitigate-nox-post-tail-pipe-.

Scottish Government to consider Low Emissions Strategy

The Scottish Government is to host a series of public events to discuss a new Low Emissions Strategy later this year and is reported to be considering fines for motorists whose vehicles emit high levels of pollution.

Both Glasgow and Edinburgh are expected to miss EU air quality targets for NO₂. Figures released by the UK's Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) estimate Edinburgh is now due to meet the targets in 2020 - five years late. Glasgow is not expected to hit the 2020 target until 2025. Press reports say that Low Emission Zones (LEZ) would be considered for such areas.

Environmentalists at Friends of the Earth said "We support the call for Low Emission Zones to be rolled out across cities in Scotland. Any LEZs should apply to cars, vans and Heavy-Goods Vehicles as well, as it is not just buses which cause air pollution."

Madrid implements Traffic Restrictions to mitigate Air Pollution

On 22 September 2014 the Madrid city council announced stringent vehicle access restrictions in the whole city centre from 2015 with the aim to mitigate air pollution and avoid EU fines for NO₂ limit breaches.

From 1 January 2015, access to 350 hectares of central Madrid will be closed to vehicle traffic except for residents and public transport. Motorbikes and delivery vehicles will be permitted access at certain times while other drivers will only be able to use specified main arteries and underground car-parks.

According to a spokeswoman for the city council, the restrictions will be extended later in 2015 to include northern neighbourhoods of central Madrid.

French Order on Retrofits amended

An amendment to the French Order on retrofit devices for M and N category vehicles was published on 6 September 2014. It adds a limit on the acceptable NO_2 increase in the exhaust.

The original Order was published on 15 May 2013 (see *AECC Newsletter of May-June 2013*). With this amendment, the maximum increase in the share of NO₂ in NOx is 30 percentage points above the NO₂ share before retrofitting (e.g. if the original NO₂/NOx ratio in the exhaust is 10%, it can be increased up to maximum 40% when the retrofit device is installed).

Environmental Public Perception in Paris

On 30 October 2014 Airparif, the air quality monitoring body in Paris and the Ile-de-France region, published the results of a new poll on environmental concerns amongst the region inhabitants.

68% of people answered that air pollution is a key issue for them, while 54% cited climate change, and 49% food. 83% of respondents called air quality in the Paris region either "bad" or "very bad". This is an 18 percentage point increase compared to the previous poll in 2008.

The report (in French) is at

www.airparif.asso.fr/_pdf/publications/sondage2014-ifop.pdf.

Low Emission Zone in Prague in 2016

On 5 September 2014 the Czech government announced that it will implement a Low Emission Zone (LEZ) in Prague on 1 January 2016 to tackle air pollution from transport.

The Czech Republic will be the second Eastern Europe Member State to implement a LEZ, following the establishment of a scheme in Budapest, Hungary.

100 million Czech crowns (\in 3.6 million) have been earmarked by the government for tackling transport pollution in Czech municipalities. The funding will be used to develop parking areas and to support the creation of services including car sharing, an environment ministry spokeswoman said.

The Czech government has established rules allowing municipalities to implement LEZs but it will not require them to do so, instead allowing local administrations to set up the schemes if they consider them necessary.

A previous attempt to lay the legal framework for LEZs in the Czech Republic was vetoed in 2011 by then president Václav Klaus.

Italy requires Minimum Blend of Second Generation Biofuels

On 14 October 2014 Italy issued a ministerial decree requiring to include in petrol and diesel fuels at least 0.6% of advanced biofuels from 2018 onwards.



Derived from substances such as algae, waste, or agricultural residues, second generation advanced biofuels are said to reduce the amount of land taken out of food production.

In 2013 a commercial scale advanced biofuels plant was opened in Crescentino near Turin, with the aim of producing 75 million litres of bioethanol every year from straw and arundo donax, an energy crop grown on marginal land. Italians recently announced plans to open three further plants in the south of the country.

The EU backed down from a planned mandatory advanced biofuels target of 2.5% by 2020, with Member States diluting the proposal to a non-binding goal of 0.5%. Italy's move marks a substantial step forward for the emerging industry.

The minimum blend requirement will rise to 0.8% in 2020 and to 1% in 2022 according to the Italian decree.

Italian Consumer Organisation sues OEMs over Misleading Fuel Economy

On 23 September 2014 the European Consumer Organisation (BEUC) published on discrepancies between fuel consumption figures advertised by car manufacturers and customer experience.

BEUC said that the study conducted by their Italian member Altroconsumo shows fuel consumption information provided to customers is 'misleading, often grossly understating how much fuel a car consumes.' The laboratory tests were carried out on a Fiat Panda fitted with a 1.2 litre gasoline engine and a Volkswagen Golf 1.6 TDI and manufacturers claimed their cars were between 18% and 50% more efficient than measured in reality.

Altroconsumo alleges that the two brands have been using loopholes such as over-inflating tyres or reducing vehicle weight to give significantly better fuel efficiency than is achievable in real-life driving conditions. For the first time in the EU, Altroconsumo is calling on owners of Fiat and Volkswagen vehicles to undertake a class action lawsuit against the two automakers over their fuel efficiency claims. Altroconsumo will go ahead with the lawsuit no matter how many customers join, and they expect to file with an Italian court within weeks.

Fiat will be asked for a compensation of €247 to each owner of the Panda variant and VW €509 to owners of the Golf, based on the additional fuel costs over an average annual distance of 15 000 km.

NORTH AMERICA

2013 Fuel Economy of Light-Duty Vehicles in the US

On 8 October 2014 the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) released its annual report on fuel economy of new light-duty vehicles. Model year 2013 vehicles achieved an average fuel economy of 24.1 miles per gallon (mpg). This represents a 0.5 mpg increase over 2012 and an increase of nearly 5 mpg since 2004, the EPA said. These figures correspond to an average fuel consumption of 11.7 I/100 km in 2013, with a reduction of 0.3 I/100 km over 2012 and of 3 I/100 km over the past nine years.

Mazda vehicles averaged the highest fuel economy, at 28.1 mpg, and lowest Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions from the 2013 car and light truck fleet. The biggest improvement in average fuel economy and GHG reductions was observed for Nissan, with a fleet-wide fuel economy of 26.2 mpg, 8.7% higher than in 2012. Sport Utility Vehicles (SUV) achieved the greatest improvement by class.

According to the EPA, recent improvements in part reflect automakers' rapid adoption of more efficient technologies such as gasoline direct injection engines, turbochargers and advanced transmissions.

US EPA Grants for Clean Diesel Projects in Polluted Ports

On 22 September 2014 the US Environment Protection Agency (EPA) announced the availability of up to \$5 million (€4 million) in grant funding to establish clean diesel projects aimed at reducing emissions from marine and inland waterway ports located in areas of poor air quality.

This is the second grant competition to focus on reducing emissions at ports under the Diesel Emissions Reduction Act (DERA). Under this competition, EPA anticipates awarding between two and five assistance agreements. Applicants may request up to \$2 million in funding toward eligible projects. Port authorities, public agencies that operate ports, and state and local governments with jurisdiction over transportation or air quality are eligible to apply. Community groups, terminal operators, shipping carriers, and other related entities are encouraged to participate through partnerships with eligible applicants. Projects may include drayage trucks, marine engines, locomotives, and cargo handling equipment at marine or inland waterway ports.

The deadline for proposals is 11 December 2014. Details on the application requirements are at <u>www.epa.gov/air/grants/rfp-epa-oar-otaq-14-07.pdf</u>.

New Light-duty Vehicles' Emissions Requirements in Canada

On 22 September 2014 Canadian Environment Minister Leona Aglukkaq announced three new regulatory initiatives to align Greenhouse Gas (GHG) and pollutant emissions requirements of light-duty vehicles with the USA.



The proposed amendments to strengthen the On-Road Vehicle and Engine Emission Regulations and the Sulfur in Gasoline Regulations were published in the Canada Gazette Part I on 27 September 2014. With these amendments, Canada is proposing to establish more stringent Tier 3 vehicle and fuel standards.

The standards would be introduced with the 2017 model year and increase in stringency until fully implemented in the 2025 model year. Once fully phased-in, the Tier 3 exhaust emission standards would be as much as 80% lower than current Tier 2 emission standards.

The average sulfur content of gasoline will be reduced from the current level of 30 parts per million (ppm) to 10 ppm beginning in 2017.

The Tier 3 and sulfur in gasoline proposals are at <u>http://canadagazette.gc.ca/rp-pr/p1/2014/2014-09-</u>27/pdf/g1-14839.pdf (p. 2455).

The final Regulations amending the Passenger Automobile and Light Truck Greenhouse Gas Emission Regulations for model year 2017 and beyond was published in the Canada Gazette Part II on 8 October 2014. These amendments represent further action to reduce GHG emissions while building on the existing Regulations for 2011-2016 model year vehicles.

The GHG emissions proposals are at http://canadagazette.gc.ca/rp-pr/p2/2014/2014-10-08/pdf/g2-14821.pdf (p. 2381).

In addition, the Government of Canada will start developing more stringent standards to further reduce GHG emissions and fuel consumption from post-2018 model year Heavy-duty vehicles.

Environmental Comparison of Diesel vs. Natural Gas for Shipping

The US Maritime Administration (MARAD) has released a new study on "Natural Gas for Waterborne Freight Transport: A Life Cycle Emissions Assessment with Case Studies".

The study quantifies emissions for various natural gas pathways as compared to conventional fuels. MARAD said when comparing emissions produced using natural gas or traditional diesel fuel, that it is important to take into account the total energy needed to make a trip, since more energy is needed in natural gas scenarios, meaning the amount of CH₄, N₂O and NOx produced is also higher, while in all-diesel scenarios, more CO₂, PM₁₀ and SOx are produced.

The results of which fuel produced less emissions were mixed. According to the study, in coastal scenarios LNG fuel produces less overall GHG emissions than diesel fuel using either low-sulfur distillate or high-sulfur residual fuel. However, Diesel in inland river scenarios resulted in less overall GHG emissions. While the analysis does not include an assessment of impacts resulting from each pollutant, MARAD highlighted the IMO's work in deeming that NOx and SOx are both important enough pollutants to regulate.

Given the importance of upstream leakage and emissions, a future study could evaluate ways to reduce or control methane releases, the report says.

The MARAD study is available at

www.marad.dot.gov/documents/Total Fuel Cycle Analysis _for_LNG.pdf.

CENTRAL & SOUTH AMERICA

B7 Mandate takes Effect in Brazil

On 1 November 2014 the amount of biodiesel that must be blended with conventional diesel in Brazil will rise from 6% to 7% according to a bill passed in May 2014.

The law also allows the volume of anhydrous ethanol mixed with gasoline to increase from 25% to 27.5%. That change will be implemented upon the completion of technical studies to assure automakers that the higher blend is safe for engines.

The higher proportions of biodiesel and ethanol in the fuel mix mean that state-controlled oil company Petrobras will have to import less fuel. Due to its large soybean industry, Brazil is the world's second largest biodiesel producer behind the United States.

EURASIA

Guidelines for Air Quality Governance in ENPI East Countries

CENN, the Caucasus Environmental NGO Network, has developed a guideline document for developing air quality monitoring systems in line with the EU requirements in European Neighbourhood and Partnership Instrument (ENPI) East countries (i.e. Armenia, Azerbaijan, Belarus, Georgia, Moldova, Russia, and Ukraine).

Prepared with the support of the national and international experts, the guideline provides an overview of the current air quality monitoring and assessment systems in Europe. This includes policy, legislative, institutional, instrumental and current air quality operations.

The guidelines are available from <u>http://w3.cenn.org/wssl/uploads</u>.

Kazakhstan to produce Euro 5 Gasoline

The head of West Kazakhstan region Nurlan Nogayev announced on 3 October 2014 that a new plant producing gasoline meeting the Euro 5 standard will be launched in the region in 2015.

The plant is being implemented by the company Kondensat. Another project to be launched in the



region in 2015 is an oil refinery with a capacity of 200 000 metric tons per year.

ASIA PACIFIC

Lower Sulfur Fuels available in Hangzhou, China

Sinopec, China's largest refiner, started supplying on 15 September 2014 gasoline and Diesel fuels that meet National Phase 5 and Phase 4 standards respectively, in Hangzhou, the capital of China's Zhejiang province.

The maximum sulfur content in gasoline and Diesel fuels are 50 and 10 parts per million (ppm) in the Chinese Phase 4 and 5 fuel standard respectively.

Zhejiang plans to implement Phase 4 standards for Diesel fuel from 1 January 2015. According to Sinopec, the province is expected to introduce National Phase 5 standards for both gasoline and Diesel fuels from 1 January 2016. The Chinese government has set a deadline for adopting National Phase 5 fuel standards in the country as 1 January 2018.

The recent upgrade makes Hangzhou the fifth major region to introduce Phase 5 fuel standards after Beijing, Shanghai, Jiangsu province and Guangdong province. Northern Tianjin and central Wuhan plan to follow from January 2015 and end 2015, respectively.

Natural Gas Hybrid Buses Deployment Plans in Seoul

The capital of South-Korea, Seoul, has announced it will expand its fleet of environmentally friendly buses in the next four years to reduce Greenhouse Gas emissions and energy costs.

Starting in 2014 with 20 Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) hybrid buses, Seoul will gradually increase that number to 2100 by 2018. These buses will be able to switch between electricity and natural gas to operate at lower and higher speeds, respectively. According to the city government, the fleet of 2100 CNG hybrid buses will cut NOx emissions by 3124 tons over nine years.

The introduction of these CNG hybrid buses follows a successful trial run of seven vehicles between July and October 2013. The results showed 34.5% greater fuel efficiency and 30% less Greenhouse Gas emissions compared to their non-hybrid counterparts.

Early Euro 4 Standard in the Philippines

Environment Secretary of the Philippines, Ramon Paje Jr., proposed on 29 September 2014 to the Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) to implement Euro 4 emissions limits six months ahead of schedule, from the original January 2016 to June 2015.

Previously criticized for lagging behind in adopting cleaner fuel standards, the DENR has proposed advancing the implementation of the Euro 4 fuel standards for new passenger and light-duty vehicles. The country currently follows Euro 2 emissions and fuels standards. Euro 2 fuel types have a sulfur content of 500 parts per million (ppm) compared to 50 ppm for Euro 4 fuels.

Around 70 to 80% of the air pollution in Metro Manila comes from vehicle emissions, while the rest comes from stationary sources such as industrial emissions and domestic sources like open burning, the DENR said. The average recorded level of total suspended particulates (TSP) in Manila was at 118 μ g/m³ in 2013, substantially higher than the national annual guideline value of 90 μ g/m³.

Paje urged the Department of Transportation and Communications to phase out vehicles that were at least 15 years old, saying that older vehicles consumed more fuel and produced more emissions. As a compromise to such a phase-out, Paje suggested that older vehicles be banned from major streets prone to heavy traffic.

UNITED NATIONS

Record Global Greenhouse Gas Levels

On 9 September 2014 the World Meteorological Organization (WMO) released their annual Greenhouse Gas (GHG) bulletin, showing that the amount of GHG in the atmosphere reached a new record high in 2013.

The bulletin, reporting on atmospheric concentrations – and not emissions – of GHG, showed that between 1990 and 2013 there was a 34% increase in radiative forcing, the warming effect on climate, because of long-lived GHG such as carbon dioxide (CO₂), methane (CH₄) and nitrous oxide (N₂O). In 2013, the concentration of CO₂ in the atmosphere was 142% of the pre-industrial era (1750), and concentrations of CH₄ and N₂O were 253% and 121% respectively.

Observations showed that CO_2 levels increased more between 2012 and 2013 than during any other year since 1984. On the global scale, the amount of CO_2 in the atmosphere reached 396 ppm in 2013, with an increase of 2.9 ppm from 2012 to 2013. Preliminary data indicated that this was possibly related to reduced CO_2 uptake by the earth's biosphere in addition to the steadily increasing CO_2 emissions.

Atmospheric methane reached a new high of about 1824 ppb in 2013, due to increased emissions from anthropogenic sources. Since 2007, methane concentrations have been increasing again after a temporary period of levelling-off. N₂O atmospheric concentration in 2013 was about 325.9 ppb.

The WMO annual GHG Bulletin is at

www.wmo.int/pages/mediacentre/press_releases/document s/1002_GHG_Bulletin.pdf.



UNECE Environmental Impact Assessment Convention

Through the entry into force on 26 August 2014 of its first amendment, the Espoo Convention on Environmental Impact Assessment in a Transboundary Context is now open to all United Nations Member States. UNECE Executive Secretary Christian Friis Bach called upon all Contracting Parties to ratify the amendment as soon as possible.

Since its entry into force in 1997 as a regional instrument under UNECE auspices, the Espoo Convention has helped countries to develop national environmental impact assessment procedures and has forged international cooperation to prevent, manage and mitigate adverse environmental impacts. To date, 23 states and the European Union have ratified, approved or accepted the amendment.

GENERAL

World Medical Assembly recommends PN Standards for all New Diesels

At its General Assembly on 8-11 October 2014, the World Medical Assembly (WMA) called for the introduction of Particle Number standards for all new Diesel vehicles (on-road and off-road).

Delegates from almost 50 national medical associations attended the annual General Assembly in Durban, South Africa. WMA said that air pollution impacts on the quality of life for hundreds of millions of people worldwide, causing both a large burden of disease as well as economic losses and increased health care costs. For that reason, the concentration of soot particles in the air needs to be reduced.

WMA recommendations are at

www.wma.net/en/30publications/10policies/a21/index.html.

ICCT Report on Real-World Emissions of Modern Diesel Cars

On 11 October 2014 the International Council on Clean Transportation (ICCT) published a meta-study on realworld exhaust emissions from modern Diesel cars presenting evidence of a real-world NOx compliance issue for recent diesel passenger cars, both for European and US test vehicles.

The study analyses Portable Emissions Measurement Systems (PEMS) data measured with 15 European and US Diesel cars driven over 97 trips, totalling more than 140 hours of operation and 6400 km. Real-world emissions data were gathered on twelve Euro 6 and three Tier 2 Bin 5/ULEV II Diesel passenger cars.

The report shows that on average, real-world NOx emissions from the tested vehicles were about seven times higher than the limits set by the Euro 6 standard.

This corresponds to an average on-road level of about 560 mg/km of NOx (compared to the Euro 6 regulatory limit of 80 mg/km). In most cases the exceedances found could not be attributed to "extreme" or "untypical" driving. Instead, they were due to transient increases in engine load typical of everyday driving (e.g. going up a slight incline), or to normal regeneration events in the normal diesel exhaust aftertreatment systems.

ICCT observed that performance differences among the vehicles tested indicate that the technologies for real-world clean diesels already exist. Some of the tested vehicles had average emissions below Euro 6 emissions limits, suggesting that the technologies to achieve that level of performance are available, but that policies are not yet in place that can force manufacturers to use these technologies and calibrate them to effectively control emissions over the majority of in-use operating conditions, not just those covered by the test cycle.

Part 2 of the report is still to be published. It will supplement the results by presenting the measured data in more details and will include explanations on how to read and interpret the detailed charts.

The ICCT report (Part I) is at http://theicct.org/sites/default/files/publications/ICCT_PEMS-study_diesel-cars_20141010.pdf.

ICCT Report on Increasing Real-world Fuel Economy Gap

On 28 September 2014 the International Council on Clean Transportation (ICCT) published another report, jointly prepared with the Netherlands' Organisation for Applied Scientific Research (TNO) and Germany's Institut für Energie- und Umweltforschung Heidelberg (IFEU), which provides a systematic statistical analysis of vehicles' real-world fuel efficiency.

The analysis draws on data from a number of different sources: the user websites spritmonitor.de (Germany) and honestjohn.co.uk (United Kingdom), the leasing companies Travelcard (Netherlands) and LeasePlan (Germany), the car and consumer magazines Auto Bild (Germany), Auto Motor Sport (Germany), WhatCar? (United Kingdom) and the car club TCS (Switzerland).

The gap between official and real-world fuel-economy figures has reached more than 30%, the report shows. Ten years ago the discrepancy between these real-world and sales-brochure values was at 10%.

The increasing gap more than halves the official CO_2 reductions achieved during the last ten years, ICCT said. The study underscores the importance of implementing the new Worldwide harmonized Light vehicles Test Procedure (WLTP), a more appropriate test that will produce more realistic type-approval values. At the same time, the study highlights the need



to complement the WLTP with additional measures, some form of in-service conformity testing, to ensure that reasonable emission values are achieved not for a single test vehicle alone but for any car sold to a consumer and driven on the road.

The ICCT-TNO-IFEU report is available at http://theicct.org/sites/default/files/publications/ICCT_Labora toryToRoad_2014_Report_English.pdf.

ICCT Paper on WLTP and Fuel Consumption

On 29 October 2014 the International Council on Clean Transportation (ICCT) published another working paper, this time on the impact of the new Worldwide harmonized Light vehicles Test Procedure (WLTP) on fuel consumption values for cars in the EU.

ICCT says that the current European Type-Approval procedure for fuel consumption and CO₂ emissions of cars (based on the New European Driving Cycle, or NEDC) includes a number of tolerances and flexibilities and no longer accurately reflects state-of-the-art technologies. The European Union is therefore planning to replace it with the newly developed WLTP in 2017.

Their paper, which includes an historical review of the WLTP development process at UNECE, identifies the main influencing parameters and quantifies their impacts. Overall, ICCT concludes that the effects of the new driving cycle and the new definition of the vehicles' test masses should result in a new WLTP-based target of 100 g CO₂/km for 2020-2021 (instead of the existing NEDC-based target of 95 g CO₂/km). In addition, if the ambient test temperature is changed for the EU-WLTP from 23°C to 14°C, an additional correction of 2 g CO₂/km.

The ICCT paper is at

www.theicct.org/sites/default/files/publications/ICCT_WLTP _EffectEU_20141029.pdf

Report on Urban Transport Modal Shift

On 17 September 2014 the University of California and the Institute for Transportation and Development Policy (ITDP) released a new report on transport modal shift in urban areas to mitigate CO_2 emissions.

This report examines how major changes in urban transport investments worldwide would affect urban passenger transport CO_2 emissions as well as mobility. It starts with the most recent United Nations' urban population forecasts and the model framework and forecasts used by the International Energy Agency for global mobility modelling. The study extends these with new research on the extent of various urban passenger transport systems in cities across the world, as well as

new estimates of the extent of mobility by nonmotorized transport and low power e-bikes.

The study concludes that a radical change in the way people get around cities (high shift scenario) could save over \$100 trillion (\in 77 trillion) in public and private capital and operating costs of urban transportation between now and 2050 and eliminate about 1.7 gigatons of CO₂ annually – a 40% reduction of urban passenger transport emissions – by 2050.

The report is available at www.itdp.org/wp-content/uploads/2014/09/A-Global-High-Shift-Scenario_WEB.pdf.

New ISO Standard on Marine Urea Quality

ISO has published a new standard ISO 18611 which specifies the quality characteristics of the marine NOx reduction agent, an aqueous urea solution at 40% concentration (AUS 40) used to operate Selective Catalytic Reduction (SCR) converters on marine vessels.

The ISO 18611 standard includes three parts. Part 1 covers urea quality requirements, Part 2 test methods, and Part 3 handling, transportation and storage.

RESEARCH SUMMARY Effects of Emissions and Pollution

Intrauterine and early postnatal exposure to outdoor air pollution and lung function at preschool age, Eva Morales, Raquel Garcia-Esteban, Oscar Asensio de la Cruz, et al.; *Thorax* (in press), doi: 10.1136/thoraxjnl-2014-205413.

A national case-crossover analysis of the short-term effect of PM_{2.5} on hospitalizations and mortality in subjects with diabetes and neurological disorders, Antonella Zanobetti, Francesca Dominici, Yun Wang, Joel D. Schwartz; *Environmental Health* (2014), Vol. 13 (38), doi: 10.1186/1476-069X-13-38.

Traffic-related air pollution and obesity formation in children: a longitudinal, multilevel analysis, Michael Jerrett, Rob McConnell, Jennifer Wolch, Roger Chang, et al.; *Environmental Health* (2014), Vol. 13 (49), <u>doi: 10.1186/1476-069X-13-49</u>.

Outdoor Particulate Matter Exposure and Lung Cancer: A Systematic Review and Meta-Analysis, Ghassan B. Hamra, Neela Guha, Aaron Cohen, et al.; *Environ. Health Perspect.* (September 2014), Vol. 122 (9), pp. 906-911, doi: 10.1289/ehp.1408092.

Air Pollution and Children: Neural and Tight Junction Antibodies and Combustion Metals, the Role of Barrier Breakdown and Brain Immunity in Neurodegeneration, Lilian Calderón-Garcidueñas, Aristo Vojdani, Eleonore Blaurock-Busch, et al.; *Alzheimer's Disease* (in press), <u>doi: 10.3233/JAD-141365</u>.

Diesel exhaust modulates ozone-induced lung function decrements in healthy human volunteers, Michael C. Madden, Tina Stevens, et al.; *Particle and Fibre Toxicology* (2014), Vol. 11 (37), doi: 10.1186/s12989-014-0037-5.

Effects of ultrafine particles on the allergic inflammation in the lung of asthmatics: results of a double-blinded randomized cross-over clinical pilot study, Frank Schaumann, Cornelia Frömke, Dorothea Dijkstra, et al.; *Particle and Fibre Toxicology* (10 September 2014), Vol. 11 (39), doi: 10.1186/s12989-014-0039-3.

Ambient air pollution and hypertensive disorders of pregnancy: A systematic review and meta-analysis, Hui Hu, Sandie Ha, Jeffrey Roth, Greg Kearney, Evelyn O. Talbott, Xiaohui Xu; *Atmospheric Environment* (November 2014), Vol. 97, pp. 336-345, doi: 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.08.027.



September – October 2014

Short term association between ambient air pollution and mortality and modification by temperature in five Indian cities, Hem H. Dholakia, Dhiman Bhadra, Amit Garg; *Atmospheric Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 99, pp. 168-174, <u>doi:</u> 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.09.071.

Air pollution and early deaths in the United States. Part II: Attribution of PM_{2.5} exposure to emissions species, time, location and sector, Irene C. Dedoussi, Steven R.H. Barrett; *Atmospheric Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 99, pp. 610-617, doi: 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.10.033.

Associations between ambient air pollution and bone turnover markers in 10-year old children: Results from the GINIplus and LISAplus studies, Chuang Liu, Elaine Fuertes, Claudia Flexeder, et al.; *International Journal of Hygiene and Environmental Health* (in press), <u>doi: 10.1016/j.ijheh.2014.07.006</u>.

Effect of long-term outdoor air pollution and noise on cognitive and psychological functions in adults, Lilian Tzivian, Angela Winkler, Martha Dlugaj, et al.; *International Journal of Hygiene and Environmental Health* (in press), doi: 10.1016/j.ijheh.2014.08.002.

PM_{2.5} Constituents and Hospital Emergency-Room Visits in Shanghai, China, Liping Qiao, Jing Cai, Hongli Wang, Weibing Wang, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (17), pp. 10406-10414, doi: 10.1021/es501305k.

Trends of non-accidental, cardiovascular, stroke and lung cancer mortality in Arkansas are associated with ambient PM_{2.5} reductions, Marie-Cécile Chalbot, Tamara A. Jones, Illias G. Kavouras; *Int. J. Environ. Res. Public Health* (21 July 2014), Vol. 11 (7), pp. 7442-7455, doi: 10.3390/ijerph110707442.

Willingness to pay to avoid health risks from road-traffic-related air pollution and noise across five countries, Tifanny Istamto, Danny Houthuijs, Erik Lebret; *Science of The Total Environment* (1 November 2014), Vol. 497-498, pp. 420-429, <u>doi:</u> 10.1016/j.scitotenv.2014.07.110.

Multifactorial airborne exposures and respiratory hospital admissions - The example of Santiago de Chile, Ulrich Franck, Arne Marian Leitte, Peter Suppan; *Science of The Total Environment* (1 January 2015), Vol. 502, pp. 114-121, <u>doi:</u> 10.1016/j.scitotenv.2014.08.093.

Personal exposure to particulate matter and inflammation among patients with periodontal disease, Tsung-Han Yang, Shin-Ichi Masumi, Shao-Ping Weng, Hua-Wei Chen, et al.; *Science of The Total Environment* (1 January 2015), Vol. 502, pp. 585-589, <u>doi:</u> 10.1016/j.scitotenv.2014.09.081.

Health benefits of improving air quality in Taiyuan, China, Deliang Tang, Cuicui Wang, Jiesheng Nie, Renjie Chen, et al.; *Environment International* (December 2014), Vol. 73, pp. 235-242, doi: 10.1016/j.envint.2014.07.016.

The association between ambient air quality and cardiac rate and rhythm in ambulatory subjects, Sabit Cakmak, Lisa Kauri, Robin Shutt, et al.; *Environment International* (December 2014), Vol. 73, pp. 365-371, doi: 10.1016/j.envint.2014.08.015.

Cardiovascular and lung function in relation to outdoor and indoor exposure to fine and ultrafine particulate matter in middle-aged subjects, Dorina Gabriela Karottki, Gabriel Bekö, Geo Clausen, et al.; *Environment International* (December 2014), Vol. 73, pp. 372-381, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.envint.2014.08.019</u>.

Airway oxidative stress and inflammation markers in exhaled breath from children are linked with exposure to black carbon, Sofie De Prins, Evi Dons, Martine Van Poppel, Luc Int Panis, et al.; *Environment International* (December 2014), Vol. 73, pp. 440-446, doi: 10.1016/j.envint.2014.06.017.

Carbon loading in airway macrophages as a biomarker for individual exposure to particulate matter air pollution - A critical review, Yang Bai, Rossa E. Brugha, Lotte Jacobs, Jonathan Grigg, Tim S. Nawrot, Benoit Nemery; *Environment International* (January 2015), Vol. 74, pp. 32-41, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.envint.2014.09.010</u>.

Outdoor air pollution and term low birth weight in Japan, Takashi Yorifuji, Saori Kashima, et al.; *Environment International* (January 2015), Vol. 74, pp. 106-111, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.envint.2014.09.003</u>.

The effects of air pollution on adverse birth outcomes, Sandie Ha, Hui Hu, Dikea Roussos-Ross, Kan Haidong, Jeffrey Roth, Xiaohui Xu; *Environmental Research* (October 2014), Vol. 134, pp. 198-204, doi: 10.1016/j.envres.2014.08.002.

The association of PM_{2.5} with full term low birth weight at different spatial scales, Gerald Harris, W. Douglas Thompson, Edward Fitzgerald, et al.; *Environmental Research* (October 2014), Vol. 134, pp. 427-434, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.envres.2014.05.034</u>.

The possible association between exposure to air pollution and the risk for congenital malformations, Adel Farhi, Valentina Boyko, Jonatan Almagor, et al.; *Environmental Research* (November 2014), Vol. 135, pp. 173-180, doi: 10.1016/j.envres.2014.08.024.

Exposure to airborne polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons during pregnancy and risk of preterm birth, Amy M. Padula, Elizabeth M. Noth, et al.; *Environmental Research* (November 2014), Vol. 135, pp. 221-226, doi: 10.1016/j.envres.2014.09.014.

Sources and contents of air pollution affecting term low birth weight in Los Angeles County, California, 2001–2008, Olivier Laurent, Jianlin Hu, Lianfa Li, et al.; *Environmental Research* (in press), doi: 10.1016/j.envres.2014.05.003.

Exposure to polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons in urban environments: Health risk assessment by age groups, Ana C. Amarillo, Iván Tavera Busso, Hebe Carreras; *Environmental Pollution* (December 2014), Vol. 195, pp. 157-162, <u>doi:</u> 10.1016/j.envpol.2014.08.027.

Source apportionment of atmospheric PM_{2.5}-bound polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons by a PMF receptor model. Assessment of potential risk for human health, María Soledad Callén, Amaia Iturmendi, José Manuel López; *Environmental Pollution* (December 2014), Vol. 195, pp. 167-177, doi: 10.1016/j.envpol.2014.08.025.

Reductions in India's crop yield due to ozone, Sachin D. Ghude, Chinmay Jena, D. M. Chate, G. Beig, G. G. Pfister, et al.; *Geophysical Research Letters* (16 August 2014), Vol. 41 (15), pp. 5685-5691, <u>doi: 10.1002/2014GL060930</u>.

Oxidative stress and inflammation generated DNA damage by exposure to air pollution particles, Peter Møller, Pernille Høgh Danielsen, Dorina Gabriela Karottki, Kim Jantzen, Martin Roursgaard, et al.; *Mutation Research / Reviews in Mutation Research* (in press), doi: 10.1016/j.mrrev.2014.09.001.

Air Quality, Sources and Exposure

An environmental, economical and socio-political analysis of a variety of urban air-pollution reduction policies for primary PM₁₀ and NOx: The case study of the Province of Milan (Northern Italy), M. Chiesa, M. G. Perrone, N. Cusumano, L. Ferrero, et al.; *Environmental Science & Policy* (December 2014), Vol. 44, pp. 39-50, doi: 10.1016/j.envsci.2014.07.012.

Environmental quality health index for cities, Lígia T. Silva; Habitat International (in press), doi: 10.1016/j.habitatint.2014.06.020.

Air Quality in Mecca and Surrounding Holy Places in Saudi Arabia During Hajj: Initial Survey, Isobel J. Simpson, Omar S. Aburizaiza, Azhar Siddique, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (15), pp. 8529-8537, <u>doi: 10.1021/es5017476</u>.

Near-road modeling and measurement of cerium-containing particles generated by nanoparticle diesel fuel additive use, Brett Gantt, Shamia Hoque, Robert D. Willis, Kathleen M. Fahey, Juana Mari Delgado-Saborit, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (18), pp. 10607-10613, <u>doi: 10.1021/es502169p</u>.

Fifteen-Year Global Time Series of Satellite-Derived Fine Particulate Matter, B. L. Boys, R. V. Martin, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (19), pp. 11109-11118, <u>doi:</u> 10.1021/es502113p.



September – October 2014

Predicting the effects of nanoscale cerium additives in diesel fuel on regional-scale air quality, Garnet Erdakos, Prakash Bhave, George Pouliot, Heather Simon, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (21), pp. 12775-12782, <u>doi: 10.1021/es504050g</u>.

Global Chemical Composition of Ambient Fine Particulate Matter for Exposure Assessment, Sajeev Philip, Randall Martin, Aaron van Donkelaar, Jason Wai-Ho Lo, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (in press), <u>doi: 10.1021/es502965b</u>.

Chemical and biological characterization of air particulate matter 2.5, collected from five cities in China, P. Y. Leung, H. T. Wan, M. B. Billah, et al.; *Environmental Pollution* (November 2014), Vol. 194, pp. 188-195, doi: 10.1016/j.envpol.2014.07.032.

Urban snow indicates pollution originating from road traffic, Kirsi Kuoppamäki, Heikki Setälä, Anna-Lea Rantalainen, D. Johan Kotze; *Environmental Pollution* (December 2014), Vol. 195, pp. 56-63, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.envpol.2014.08.019</u>.

Air pollution in Asia, Vadrevu Prasad Krishna, Ohara Toshimasa, Justice Chris; *Environmental Pollution* (December 2014), Vol. 195, pp. 233-235, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.envpol.2014.09.006</u>.

NOx profile around a signalized intersection of busy roadway, Kyung Hwan Kim, Seung-Bok Lee, Sung Ho Woo, Gwi-Nam Bae; *Atmospheric Environment* (November 2014), Vol. 97, pp. 144-154, doi: 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.08.012.

A study of the effects of vehicle emissions on the atmosphere of Sultan Qaboos University in Oman, Sabah A. Abdul-Wahab, Sulaiman O. Fadlallah, *Atmospheric Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 98, pp. 158-167, doi: 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.08.049.

Air Quality Status and Trends in Europe, Cristina B. B. Guerreiro, Valentin Foltescu, Frank de Leeuw; *Atmospheric Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 98, pp. 376-384, <u>doi:</u> 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.09.017.

Impact on air quality of measures to reduce CO_2 emissions from road traffic in Basel, Rotterdam, Xi'an and Suzhou, Menno Keuken, Sander Jonkers, Henk Verhagen, Laura Perez, et al.; *Atmospheric Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 98, pp. 434-441, doi: 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.09.024.

Source apportionment of PM_{10} in the Western Mediterranean based on observations from a cruise ship, C. Schembari, M.C. Bove, E. Cuccia, F. Cavalli, et al.; *Atmospheric Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 98, pp. 510-518, <u>doi:</u> 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.09.015.

Anthropogenic emissions in Nigeria and implications for atmospheric ozone pollution: a view from space, E. A. Marais, D. J. Jacob, K. Wecht, et al.; *Atmospheric Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 99, pp. 32-40, doi: 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.09.055.

Degradation in urban air quality from construction activity and increased traffic arising from a road widening scheme, Anna Font, Timothy Baker, Ian S. Mudway, Esme Purdie, et al.; *Science of The Total Environment* (1 November 2014), Vol. 497-498, pp. 123-132, doi: 10.1016/j.scitotenv.2014.07.060.

Determinants of personal exposure to some carcinogenic substances and nitrogen dioxide among the general population in five Swedish cities, Hagenbjörk-Gustafsson A., Tornevi A., Andersson E. M., et al.; *J. Expo. Sci. Environ. Epidemiol.* (July 2014), Vol. 24(4), pp. 437-443, doi: 10.1038/jes.2013.57.

Air quality impacts of liquefied natural gas in the South Coast Air Basin of California, Marc Carreras-Sospedra, Melissa M. Lunden, et al.; *Natural Gas Science and Engineering* (November 2014), Vol. 21, pp. 680-690, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.jngse.2014.09.025</u>.

High secondary aerosol contribution to particulate pollution during haze events in China, Ru-Jin Huang, Yanlin Zhang, Carlo Bozzetti, Kin-Fai Ho, Jun-Ji Cao, et al.; *Nature* (9 October 2014), Vol. 514, pp. 218-222, <u>doi: 10.1038/nature13774</u>.

Changes in European greenhouse gas and air pollutant emissions 1960–2010: decomposition of determining factors,

Peter Rafaj, Markus Amann, José Siri, et al.; *Climatic Change* (June 2014), Vol. 124 (3), pp. 477-504, <u>doi: 10.1007/s10584-013-0826-0</u>.

Current air quality analytics and monitoring: A review, Mariusz Marć, Marek Tobiszewski, Bożena Zabiegała, et al.; *Analytica Chimica Acta* (in press), <u>doi: 10.1016/j.aca.2014.10.018</u>.

Personal day-time exposure to ultrafine particles in different microenvironments, Jianwei Gu, Ute Kraus, Alexandra Schneider, et al.; *International Journal of Hygiene and Environmental Health* (in press), doi: 10.1016/j.ijheh.2014.10.002.

Emissions Measurements and Modelling

Emissions of modern light duty ethanol flex-fuel vehicles over different operating and environmental conditions, Christos Dardiotis, Georgios Fontaras, Alessandro Marotta, Giorgio Martini, Urbano Manfredi; *Fuel* (15 January 2015), Vol. 140, pp. 531-540, doi: 10.1016/j.fuel.2014.09.085.

Exhaust and evaporative emissions from motorcycles fueled with ethanol gasoline blends, Lan Li, Yunshan Ge, Mingda Wang, Zihang Peng, et al.; *Science of The Total Environment* (1 January 2015), Vol. 502, pp. 627-631, doi: 10.1016/j.scitotenv.2014.09.068.

Comparison of instruments for particle number size distribution measurements in air quality monitoring, H.D. Price, B. Stahlmecke, R. Arthur, et al.; *Aerosol Science* (October 2014), Vol. 76, pp. 48-55, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.jaerosci.2014.05.001</u>.

Field measurement of nitromethane from automotive emissions at a busy intersection using proton-transfer-reaction mass spectrometry, Satoshi Inomata, Yuji Fujitani, Akihiro Fushimi, Hiroshi Tanimoto, et al.; *Atmospheric Environment* (October 2014), Vol. 96, pp. 301-309, doi: 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.07.058.

Ammonia exhaust emissions from spark ignition vehicles over the New European Driving Cycle, R. Suarez-Bertoa, A.A. Zardini, C. Astorga; *Atmospheric Environment* (November 2014), Vol. 97, pp. 43-53, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.07.050</u>.

Estimation of vehicular emissions using dynamic emission factors: A case study of Delhi, India, Dhirendra Mishra, P. Goyal; *Atmospheric Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 98, pp. 1-7, <u>doi:</u> 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.08.047.

Multi-pollutant mobile platform measurements of air pollutants adjacent to a major roadway, Erin A. Riley, Lyndsey Banks, Jonathan Fintzi, et al.; *Atmospheric Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 98, pp. 492-499, doi: 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.09.018.

On the primary emission of formic acid from light duty gasoline vehicles and ocean-going vessels, Timia A. Crisp, James M. Brady, et al.; *Atmospheric Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 98, pp. 426-433, doi: 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.08.070.

A quantitative estimation of the exhaust, abrasion and resuspension components of particulate traffic emissions using electron microscopy, Stephan Weinbruch, Annette Worringen, Martin Ebert, et al.; *Atmospheric Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 99, pp. 175-182, doi: 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.09.075.

Ethanol, Isobutanol, and Biohydrocarbons as Gasoline Components in Relation to Gaseous Emissions and Particulate Matter, Päivi T. Aakko-Saksa, Leena Rantanen-Kolehmainen, Eija Skyttä; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (17), pp. 10489-10496, doi: 10.1021/es501381h.

Electron Microscopic Study of Soot Particulate Matter Emissions from Aircraft Turbine Engines, Anthi Liati, Benjamin T. Brem, Lukas Durdina, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (18), pp. 10975-10983, <u>doi: 10.1021/es501809b</u>.

Secondary organic aerosol formation from in-use motor vehicle emissions using a Potential Aerosol Mass reactor, Daniel S. Tkacik, Andrew Lambe, Shantanu Jathar, Xiang Li, Albert A. Presto, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (19), pp. 11235-11242, doi: 10.1021/es502239v.



Real-time emission factor measurements of isocyanic acid from light duty gasoline vehicles, James Brady, Timia Crisp, Sonya Collier, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (19), pp. 11405-11412, doi: 10.1021/es504354p.

Particle Emissions from a Marine Engine: Chemical Composition and Aromatic Emission Profiles under Various Operating Conditions, Olli Sippula, Benjamin Stengel, Martin Sklorz, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (19), pp. 11721-11729, doi: 10.1021/es502484z.

Influence of fuel molecular structure on the volatility and oxidative potential of biodiesel particulate matter, Ali Mohammad Pourkhesalian, Svetlana Stevanovic, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (21), pp. 12577-12585, doi: 10.1021/es503160m.

Evaluating the emission status of light-duty gasoline vehicles and motorcycles in Macao with real-world remote sensing measurement, Yu Zhou, Ye Wu, et al.; *Environmental Sciences* (in press), doi: 10.1016/j.jes.2014.09.009.

Combustion characteristics, performance and exhaust emissions of a diesel engine fueled with a waste cooking oil biodiesel mixture, Özer Can; *Energy Conversion and Management* (November 2014), Vol. 87, pp. 676-686, <u>doi:</u> 10.1016/j.enconman.2014.07.066.

A review on idling reduction strategies to improve fuel economy and reduce exhaust emissions of transport vehicles, I. Shancita, H. H. Masjuki, M. A. Kalam, I. M. Rizwanul Fattah, et al.; *Energy Conversion and Management* (December 2014), Vol. 88, pp. 794-807, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.enconman.2014.09.036</u>.

Performance, emissions, combustion and injection characteristics of a diesel engine fuelled with canola oil-hazelnut soapstock biodiesel mixture, Erkan Öztürk; *Fuel Processing Technology* (January 2015), Vol. 129, pp. 183-191, doi: 10.1016/j.fuproc.2014.09.016.

Characterization of particulate matter emitted from transit buses fueled with B20 in idle modes, Hamid Omidvarborna, Ashok Kumar, Dong-Shik Kim; *Environmental Chemical Engineering* (in press), doi: 10.1016/j.jece.2014.09.020.

Emissions Control, Catalysis, Filtration

Low-temperature carbon monoxide oxidation catalysed by regenerable atomically dispersed palladium on alumina, Eric J. Peterson, Andrew T. DeLaRiva, Sen Lin, et al.; *Nature Communications* 5 (2014), Article 4885, doi: 10.1038/ncomms5885.

Promotional effect of vanadium on the selective catalytic oxidation of NH_3 to N_2 over Ce/V/TiO₂ catalyst, Sang Moon Lee, Sung Chang Hong; *Applied Catalysis B: Environmental* (February 2015), Vol. 163, pp. 30-39, doi: 10.1016/j.apcatb.2014.07.043.

Selective catalytic reduction of NOx by ammonia over phosphate-containing Ce_{0.75}Zr_{0.25}O₂ solids, Jun Yu, Zhichun Si, et al.; *Applied Catalysis B: Environmental* (February 2015), Vol. 163, pp. 223-232, doi: 10.1016/j.apcatb.2014.08.006.

Pt/Ce_xPr_{1-x}O₂ (x = 1 or 0.9) NOx storage-reduction (NSR) catalysts, Verónica Rico-Pérez, Agustín Bueno-López, et al.; *Applied Catalysis B: Environmental* (February 2015), Vol. 163, pp. 313-322, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.apcatb.2014.08.016</u>.

Global kinetic modeling of hydrothermal aging of NH₃-SCR over Cu-zeolites, Supriyanto, Kurnia Wijayanti, Ashok Kumar, Saurabh Joshi, et al.; *Applied Catalysis B: Environmental* (February 2015), Vol. 163, pp. 382-392, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.apcatb.2014.07.059</u>.

Kinetic modeling of NH₃-SCR over a supported Cu zeolite catalyst using axial species distribution measurements, Xavier Auvray, William Partridge, Jae-Soon Choi, Josh Pihl, et al.; *Applied Catalysis B: Environmental* (February 2015), Vol. 163, pp. 393-403, doi: 10.1016/j.apcatb.2014.08.003.

Aging, re-dispersion, and catalytic oxidation characteristics of model Pd/Al_2O_3 automotive three-way catalysts, Xiaoyin Chen, Yisun Cheng, Chang Yup Seo, Johannes W. Schwank, et al.; *Applied*

Catalysis B: Environmental (February 2015), Vol. 163, pp. 499-509, doi: 10.1016/j.apcatb.2014.08.018.

Combined effect of KCl and SO₂ on the selective catalytic reduction of NO by NH₃ over V₂O₅/TiO₂ catalyst, Qichao Li, Sifan Chen, Zhenyu Liu, et al.; *Applied Catalysis B: Environmental* (March 2015), Vol. 164, pp. 475-482, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.apcatb.2014.09.036</u>.

Unregulated emissions from diesel engine with particulate filter using Fe-based fuel borne catalyst, Hong Zhao, Yunshan Ge, Tiezhu Zhang, et al.; *Environmental Sciences* (1 October 2014), Vol. 26 (10), pp. 2027-2033, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.jes.2014.08.004</u>.

Experimental study on filtration and continuous regeneration of a particulate filter system for heavy-duty diesel engines, Tao Tang, Jun Zhang, Dongxiao Cao, et al.; *Environmental Sciences* (in press), doi: 10.1016/j.jes.2014.04.004.

Gaseous emissions from a heavy-duty engine equipped with SCR aftertreatment system and fuelled with diesel and biodiesel: Assessment of pollutant dispersion and health risk, Yara S. Tadano, Guilherme C. Borillo, Ana Flávia L. Godoi, et al.; *Science of The Total Environment* (1 December 2014), Vol. 500-501, pp. 64-71, doi: 10.1016/j.scitotenv.2014.08.100.

Urea-SCR system optimization with various combinations of mixer types and decomposition pipe lengths, Cho, Lee, Choi & Yoon; *International Journal of Automotive Technology* (August 2014), Vol.15 (5), pp. 723-731, <u>doi: 10.1007/s12239-014-0075-x</u>.

Mechanism of N₂O Formation during the Low-Temperature Selective Catalytic Reduction of NO with NH₃ over Mn–Fe Spinel, Shijian Yang, Shangchao Xiong, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (17), pp. 10354-10362, <u>doi: 10.1021/es502585s</u>.

Impact of selective catalytic reduction on exhaust particle formation over excess ammonia events, Stavros Amanatidis, Leonidas Ntziachristos, Barouch Giechaskiel, Alexander Bergmann, Zissis Samaras; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (19), pp. 11527-11534, doi: 10.1021/es502895v.

Efficient Selective Catalytic Reduction of NO by Novel Carbondoped Metal Catalysts Made from Electroplating Sludge, Jia Zhang, Jingyi Zhang, Yunfeng Xu, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (19), pp. 11497-11503, <u>doi: 10.1021/es502391y</u>.

Mechanism of the Selective Catalytic Oxidation of Slip Ammonia over Ru-Modified Ce–Zr Complexes Determined by in Situ Diffuse Reflectance Infrared Fourier Transform Spectroscopy, Wanmiao Chen, Yongpeng Ma, Zan Qu, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (20), pp. 12199-12205, doi: 10.1021/es502369f.

Transport, Climate Change & Emissions

Global and regional climate impacts of black carbon and coemitted species from the on-road diesel sector, Marianne T. Lund, Terje K. Berntsen, et al.; *Atmospheric Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 98, pp. 50-58, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.atmosenv.2014.08.033</u>.

Effects of decarbonising international shipping and aviation on climate mitigation and air pollution, Olivier Dessens, Annela Anger, et al.; *Environmental Science & Policy* (December 2014), Vol. 44, pp. 1-10, doi: 10.1016/j.envsci.2014.07.007.

A New High-Resolution N₂O Emission Inventory for China in 2008, Feng Zhou, Ziyin Shang, Philippe Ciais, Shu Tao, Shilong Piao, et al.; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (15), pp. 8538-8547, doi: 10.1021/es5018027.

Consideration of Black Carbon and Primary Organic Carbon Emissions in Life-Cycle Analysis of Greenhouse Gas Emissions of Vehicle Systems and Fuels, Hao Cai, Michael Q. Wang; *Environ. Sci. Technol.* (2014), Vol. 48 (20), pp. 12445-12453, <u>doi:</u> 10.1021/es503852u.

Health and environmental benefits related to electric vehicle introduction in EU countries, Jurgen Buekers, Mirja Van Holderbeke, Johan Bierkens, Luc Int Panis; *Transportation Research Part D: Transport and Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 33, pp. 26-38, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.trd.2014.09.002</u>.



September – October 2014

Technical efficiency of automobiles – A nonparametric approach incorporating carbon dioxide emissions, Benjamin Hampf, Jens J. Krüger; *Transportation Research Part D: Transport and Environment* (December 2014), Vol. 33, pp. 47-62, <u>doi:</u> 10.1016/j.trd.2014.08.020.

The impact of the economic crisis and policy actions on GHG emissions from road transport in Spain, Natalia Sobrino, Andres Monzon; *Energy Policy* (November 2014), Vol. 74, pp. 486-498, <u>doi:</u> 10.1016/j.enpol.2014.07.020.

Diffusion of low emission vehicles and their impact on CO₂ emission reduction in Japan, Ken Oshiro, Toshihiko Masui; *Energy Policy* (in press), doi: 10.1016/j.enpol.2014.09.010.

Progress and perspectives in converting biogas to transportation fuels, Liangcheng Yang, Xumeng Ge, et al.; *Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews* (December 2014), Vol. 40, pp. 1133-1152, <u>doi: 10.1016/j.rser.2014.08.008</u>.

How shorter black carbon lifetime alters its climate effect, Øivind Hodnebrog, Gunnar Myhre, Bjørn H. Samset; *Nature Communications 5* (2014), Article 5065, <u>doi: 10.1038/ncomms6065</u>.

FORTHCOMING CONFERENCES Homologation Symposium

17-18 November 2014, Munich, Germany

www.tuev-sued.de/academy/conference-management/automobilerail/homologation

The conference organized by TÜV-Süd will address new CoC documents, German single type approval according to Directive 2007/46/EC, homologation according to international regulations (GOST, CCC, INMETRO, Trias), cooperation with local type approval single authorities type approvals, data management/CoC, small series, modifications of the inspection stations, perspective from German emissions/WLTP/PEMS, and workshops for passenger cars / trucks and agricultural vehicles.

Future Fuels for Shipping Seminar

17-18 November 2014, London, UK

www.lloydsmaritimeacademy.com/event/future-fuels-for-shipping

The seminar will assess the technical viability of using alternative marine fuels: hydrogen, methanol, biofuel and glycerol.

9th International MTZ Conference: Heavy-Duty, Onand Off-Highway Engines 2014

18-19 November 2014, Saarbrücken, Germany

www.atzlive.de/index.php;do=show/sid=nv9kaj4hhtsjhb1u0o1pr0vsr 3/site=atz/lng=en/alloc=333/id=735

This event will focus on new powertrains for commercial vehicles, off-highway, marine and stationary applications, complete system optimization, solutions for emissions reduction and the optimization of engine mechanics and fuel consumption. The conference will examine current and future developments in heavy-duty diesel and gas engines for various applications.

SAE/JSAE 2014 Small Engine Technology Conference

18-20 November 2014, Pisa, Italy

www.sae.org/events/setc

The conference will discuss the state of the economy and the status of emissions regulations, alternative powertrains and the effects on the environment. The vehicle product ranges from ATVs, scooters and motorcycles to portable power generators, lawnmowers and hand tools.

7th China Off-Highway Vehicle Summit 2014

19-21 November 2014, Shanghai, China

www.duxes-events.com/ohv7

The summit will discuss emissions standards, policies and regulations, market climate, technical development trends, and aftermarket.

Pollution Atmosphérique Longue Distance: évaluation, risques, gestion et décision

20-21 November 2014, Lille, France

www.rst.developpement-durable.gouv.fr/pollution-atmospheriquelongue-a729.html

This conference sponsored by the French Ministry of Ecology and the French agency for environment and energy management (Ademe) will address air pollution processes, field experience, ecosystem and health effects, economic and political consequences.

3rd China International Diesel Engine Summit 2014

20-21 November 2014, Beijing, China

www.borscon-de3.com/de3/en

The event will cover worldwide emissions regulations for on-road and non-road applications, OEMs technical roadmaps, latest Diesel engine technology, engine testing, SCR, hybrids, dual-fuel engines, fuel economy, etc.

SIA Powertrain / Trucks & Off-Road

25 November 2014, Bourg-en-Bresse, France

www.sia.fr/evenement_detail_sia_powertrain_trucks_off_1212.htm

The conference will provide feedback on Euro VI solutions and prepare the next evolutions of the powertrains for fuel consumption improvement and challenges on the environmental regulations for on-road and off-road applications.

Conférence "Mobilité, urbanisme et qualité de l'air: agir sur les territoires !"

26 November 2014, Paris, France

www.conf-air-mobilite-urbanisme.ademe.fr

Conference organized by ADEME on "Mobility, Town Planning and Air Quality".

Air Quality Forum

26 November 2014, Paris, France

www.lesrespirations.org

Roundtables on education for air quality: health and environmental impact, class-actions, green growth and air quality and climate change.



Exhaust Technology Seminar

4-5 December 2014, Stuttgart, Germany

http://cti.euroforum.de/en/events/exhaust_technology_dezember20

CTI seminar covering the basics of emission formation and composition, international emission legislations, Real-Driving Emissions, developments in exhaust aftertreatment in standard petrol engines, Diesel exhaust emissions (DPF), commercial vehicle exhaust systems, three-way catalysts, OBD, NOx trap, SCR, combination of systems, New European Driving Cycle and Changes from Euro 6-1 to 6-2.

Air Quality in Europe – New Challenges

9-10 December 2014, London, UK

http://aamg-rsc.org/meetings/monitoring-ambient-air-2014

The conference, organized by the Automation and Analytical Management Group (AAMG) – a special interest group of the Analytical Division of the Royal Society of Chemistry (RSC), will address regulation of emissions, understanding of air pollution sources and mechanisms involved in air quality.

SAE 2014 Light Duty Emissions Control Symposium

9-10 December 2014, Troy, MI, USA

www.sae.org/events/lde

The Symposium will discuss the recently announced EPA Tier 3 regulations beginning in 2017, diesel and gasoline particulate matter control, CAFE standards, and CO_2 and criteria emission regulations.

13th International CTI Conference: Exhaust Systems

19-21 January 2015, Stuttgart, Germany http://cti.euroforum.de/en/events/exhaust_systems

This seminar conveys the basics of the currently most important technical concepts of exhaust gas technology using several practical examples.

Engine Optimisation for RDE

20-21 January 2015, Frankfurt-Mörfelden, Germany

www.engine-optimisation-rde.com

The conference will focus on engine requirements and engine emissions control concepts specifically in relation to achieving Real-Driving Emissions (RDE) compliance.

10th International Colloquium Fuels - Conventional and Future Energy for Automobiles

20-22 January 2015, Stuttgart, Germany

www.tae.de/fuels

Main topics of the conference include aspects of fuel production, practical performance of fuels and their evaluation, microbiological aspects, e-mobility and hybrid cars, deposits and their control aspects of fuels, fuel additives, biofuels, fuel cell technology, and quality testing of fuels.

Exhaust Technology Seminar

28-29 January 2015, Braunschweig, Germany

http://cti.euroforum.de/en/events/exhaust_technology_januar2015

CTI seminar covering the basics of emission formation and composition, international emission legislations, Real-Driving Emissions, developments in exhaust aftertreatment in standard petrol engines, Diesel exhaust emissions (DPF), commercial vehicle exhaust systems, three-way catalysts, OBD, NOx trap, SCR, combination of systems, New European Driving Cycle and Changes from Euro 6-1 to 6-2.

4th Integer Emissions Summit Russia

24-26 February 2015, Moscow, Russia

http://www.integer-research.com/conferences/russia-cis-2015

The conference will investigate the impact of on-road Euro IV and V and non-road Tier III legislation and examine strategies to successfully ensure compliance.

SAE 2015 On-Board Diagnostics Symposium – Europe

2-4 March 2015, Stuttgart, Germany

www.sae.org/events/obd-eu

The symposium will discuss the latest updates regarding technical standards, processes, and techniques necessary to comply with global OBD and emissions regulations.

Kolloquium Luftqualität an Straßen 2015

4-5 March 2015, Bergisch Gladbach, Germany

www.bast.de/DE/Service/Termine/2015/luft-2015.html

Forum on current research activities in the field of air quality along transport routes as well as traffic-related measures in the wake of air pollution control plans.

AVL Workshop Real Driving Emissions

10 March 2015, Pfungstadt, Germany

Info will be at <u>www.avl-veranstaltungen.de</u>

Green Ship Technology Conference

10-13 March 2015, Copenhagen, Denmark

www.informamaritimeevents.com/event/greenshiptechnology

Key topics of discussion include fuel efficiency and energy management, emissions controls, alternative energy sources, new innovative technologies for sustainable shipping, retrofitting solutions to meet regulatory requirements, and cutting edge ship designs for operational efficiencies.

5th Integer Emissions Summit India 2015

25-26 March 2015, New Delhi, India

www.integer-research.com/conferences/ies-india-2015/

The conference will explore the challenges and opportunities, and examine successful diesel



emissions control strategies, for the Indian on-road and non-road mobile machinery (NRMM) sectors.

2015 CITA Conference "Enhancing the value of vehicle inspection"

14-16 April 2015, Dubai, United Arab Emirates

www.cita-

vehicleinspection.org/Home/CITAConferences/2015InternationalDubai/tabid/516/Default.aspx

Topics to be covered by the plenary sessions, workshops and discussion forum include future directions for vehicle inspection, integrating vehicle, driver and infrastructure strategies, PTI scenarios, achieving inspection integrity, ensuring best inspection practice, priorities for new testing procedures, inspection procedures and methods, and regional perspective for PTI in the Middle East.

SAE 2015 World Congress

21-23 April 2015, Detroit, USA

www.sae.org/congress

AVL Roadshow Real Driving Emissions

21 April 2015, Pfungstadt, Germany

23 April 2015, Stuttgart, Germany

28 April 2015, Hannover, Germany

Info will be at <u>www.avl-veranstaltungen.de</u>

36th International Vienna Motor Symposium

7-8 May 2015, Vienna, Austria

www.xn--vk-eka.at/index_en.htm

The symposium will address latest results in worldwide engine and powertrain development, future legislation, fuels and components, drive train electrification, hybrid technology, CO_2 reduction, and exhaust emissions control.

8th AVL International Commercial Powertrain Conference

20-21 May 2015, Graz, Austria

www.avl.com/icpc

Main Topics for the Technical Sessions will be truck and bus (hybrid powertrain technologies, LNG / CNG), agricultural tractors (potential of electrically driven implements, alternative fuels), and construction machinery (modern transmission technologies, hybridisation).

SIA Powertrain - The low CO₂ spark ignition engine of the future and its hybridization

27-28 May 2015, Versailles, France

www.sia.fr/evenement_detail_sia_powertrain_versailles_2015_123 3.htm

SIA has merged two events: the "Spark Ignition Engine" conference, formerly held in Strasbourg, and the one-day conference dedicated to powertrain electrification, which used to be organized with the support of IFP Energies Nouvelles.

Deadline for abstract: 15 November 2014

15th European Automotive Congress

8-10 June 2015, Györ, Hungary http://eaec2015.org

Topics include safety, emissions, environment, energy, design, quality and automotive logistics.

19th ETH Nanoparticles Conference

28 June - 1 July 2015, Zurich, Switzerland

www.nanoparticles.ethz.ch

Forum in the field of combustion-generated nanoparticles, technical aspects as well as environmental impact, health effects and legislation.

Deadline for abstract: 16 November 2014

2015 JSAE/SAE Powertrains, Fuels and Lubricants International Meeting

1-4 September 2015, Kyoto, Japan

http://pfl2015.jp

24th Aachen Colloquium

5-7 October 2015, Aachen, Germany Info will be at www.aachener-kolloquium.de

CAPoC10

28-30 October 2015, Brussels, Belgium

http://capoc.ulb.ac.be

Tenth International Congress on Catalysis and Pollution Control.

FISITA 2016 World Automotive Congress

26-30 September 2016, Busan, South Korea Info will be at www.fisita2016.com

Deadline for abstracts: 30 September 2015